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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Inovoa Hotels & Resorts
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2019 and the
Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, statement of Changes in
Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“"IND AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31%" March, 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

e« The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information obtained at the date of this auditor’s report is information included in the
Director’s Report, Chairman’s statement, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

e Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
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the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intern
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control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, included
in these Ind AS financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on May 23, 2018,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the "Annexure - A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), and the Cash Flow Statement (and statement of changes in equity) dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, with read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315t March,
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as

on 31%t March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this
report.

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2019;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial

position in its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 28 to the Ind AS financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 002391C/N500069

Peakeck Ao

Prateek Agrawal

Partner

Membership # 402826

Signed at Noida on May 22, 2019
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditors Report

[Refer to in our separate report of even date]

Annexure referred to under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Report of even date to the members of INOVOA HOTELS & RESORTS
LIMITED on the financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2019 and based on the
audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations
given to us and the books of accounts and other records examined by us in the normal course
of audit, we report that:

I (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
guantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the
management in a phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is
reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of the
assets. As informed to us no material discrepancies were noticed in such
physical verification.

(c) Title deeds in respect of all immovable properties are held in the name of the
company.

11 As explained to us physical verification has been conducted by the
management at reasonable interval in respect of inventories of finished goods,
stores, spares parts and raw material. We informed that physical verification.
In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. We were
explained that no ‘material discrepancies have been noticed on physical
verification.

111 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of para
3(iii)(a) to 3(iii) (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

v According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not given any loan to Directors or persons connected with them as per the
provisions mentioned in section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not made any investments, loans, guarantees and securities to any person or
other bodies corporates as per the provisions mentioned in section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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vV According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73 to
76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there-under. Therefore,
the provisions of para 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

VI In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us,
maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central
Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the services
provided by the company.

VII a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is
regular in depositing and based on our examination of the records of the
company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Goods & Service tax,
Sales Tax, Value added tax, Employee’s State Insurance, duty of excise,
duty of customs, Cess and other material statutory dues, have been
generally regularly deposited during the year by the Company with
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of income tax, Provident fund, Goods & Service
tax, Sales Tax, Value added tax, Employee’s State Insurance, duty of
excise, duty of customs, Cess and other material statutory dues, were in
arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
amounts in respect of Income Tax, Goods & Service tax, Sales tax, Value
added tax, Employee’s State Insurance, duty of excise, duty of Customs,
Cess and Service Tax etc. that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

VIII In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings from any
financial institution or bank or Government. Further, the Company has not
issued Debentures hence no comment is offered with respect to repayment of
dues to debenture-holders.

IX According to the information and explanations given to us, term loans obtained
during the year applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained by
the company. The company has not raised any money during the year by way
of initial or further public offer.
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XI

XII

XIII

X1V

XV

XVI

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud
by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the year.

According to information and explanation given to us, the company has paid
any managerial remuneration during the year in accordance with the provision
of section 197 read with schedule V of the Companies Act,2013.

As explained, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions
of para 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the
opinion that all related party transaction are in compliance with Section188
and Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable. Necessary
disclosure have been made in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Therefore, the provisions of para 3(xiv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no non-cash
transactions with Directors or persons connected with him have been noticed
or reported during the year as per the provisions of Section 192 of Companies
Act, 2013.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore, the provisions of para 3(xvi) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 002391C/N500069

Puakesk Ajmal

Prateek Agrawal

Partner,

Membership # 402826

Signed at Noida on May 22, 2019
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditors Report
[Refer to in our separate report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of INOVOA HOTELS &
RESORTS LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company'’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note"”) and
the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. :
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN 002391C/N500069

Prateek Agrawal

Partner,

Membership # 402826

Signed at Noida on May 22, 2019
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Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited
Notes to financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

1. Corporate Information

Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited (the Com pany) is a public campany domiciled in [ndia and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India, The registered

office of the company is located at Asset No.6. Aerocity Hospitality District New Lelhi-
L0637,

The principal activities of the Company is 1o carry out business of developing, owning,
acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants; efc.,

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on May 22, 2019,

2 Basis of preparation
2.1 Significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015,

T'he Financial Statements have been prepared on g historical cost or at amortized cost except
for the following assets and liabilities:

* Net defined benefit (asset)liability
* Certain financial assets and liabilities measurcd at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding [inancial instruments),

Accounting policies have been consistently applied cxeept where 4 newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing account standard required a change to
the accounting policy hitherto to in use,

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees ( INR) and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

33 Summary of significant accounting policies

{a) Current versus non-curreng classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current’ non-current
classification. An asset s treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realized ar intended to be sold or cons umed in normal eperatin & evele

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected 10 be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, o

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle a liahility
for at least twelve manths afier the reporting period

All other assets are classified 85 NUN-current.

A liability is current when:

* Itis expected to be sewled in normal operating cyele

* [tig held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Itis due to be seftled within twelve months after the reporting period. or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the seitlement of the liability for at least twelve
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months after the reporting period
The Company classifics all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as hon-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cyele is the time between the acquisition of assers for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cyvela,

{b) Foreign currencies
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company's entities at their
respective functional curency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate il the averape
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at (he
functional currency Spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in
prefit or loss

(3] Fair value messurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, Investment in mutual funds at fair
value at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between marker participants at the measurement date, The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 1o sel| the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

¢ Inthe principal market for the asset or lability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most ad vantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interost.

A fair value measurement of non-financial asset takes into decount a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by <elling
it to another market participant that would use the assel in its highest and best yse

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropridte in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fajr value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservakle inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured of disclosed in the Mnancial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows. based on the
lowest e ]Ij-ilrgpur.,tltal is significant to the fair valye measurement as a whole:
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* Leyel | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices

{d)

evel in active markers for identical pssets or
liahilitjes

' Lovelo_. Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value Mmeasurement ig directly or indirectly abserya ble

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest [eve| input that is significant to the

Fair value measurement g unobscrvahle.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial stalemenls on g recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
Fe-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that s significant to the fa5; value

The Company determines the policies and procedures for hoth recurring  fair valye
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assers measured at Fair
value. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The
Mmanagement selects external valyer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management
decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques
and inputs to use for each case,

At each reporting date, the management analyses the Movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasyred Or re-assessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation 1o condracts and
other relevant documents,

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s exiernal valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assels and
linbilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or ljgh] lity and tlye
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value, Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant niotes,

* Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumplions (note 26)
* Quantitative disclosures of tair value measurement hierarchy (note 30}
* Financial instruments (including those carried g amortized cost) (note 30

Revenue recognition

Effective April 1, 20) 8. the Company has applied Ind AS 115 “Revenye from Contracts with
Customers™ which establishes a comprehensive framework 1o depict timing and amoun of
fevenue to be recognised. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using cumulative catch-up
transition method, where any effect arising upon application of this standard js recognised as
at the date of initial application (i.e April |, 2018). The standard is applied only to contracts
that are not completed as at the date of initial application and the comparative information in
the statement of profit and loss is not restated - je. the comparative information continues to
be reported under previous standards on revenue j.e Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11. There was o
impact on adoption of Ind AS 115 to the financial statements of the Company,

In arrangements for room revenue and related services, the Com pany has applied the guidance

in Ind AS 115 for rec:o},g};rj;iq of Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the
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customers gencrally meet the criteria for considering room revenue and related services as
distinet performance obligations, For allocating the transaction price, the Company hgs
measured the revenue in respect of cach performance obligation of a contracy a1 its relative
standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separatelv iy
the best evidence of jts standalone selling price.

Revenue is recognized 1o the extent that it js probable that the economic benefits will Aow 1o
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenye js measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
Company assesses its fevenue arrangements against specific eriteria to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent, The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of jts
revenue arrangements, The specific recognition criteris described below must also be met
before revenue js recognized,

Sales tax/ value added tax (VATNGST is not received by the Company on its own account,
Rather, it is tax collected on value added io the commodity by the seller an behalf of the
government, Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Rooms, Restaurant, Banquets and Other Serviees

Income from guest dccommodation is recognized on a day to day basis afier the guesi checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized
25 and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Service Tax, Value Added
Taxes (VATVGST and Luxury Tax. Shortfall of revenue over the billed as at the year-end g
carried in financial statement gs unbilled revenue Separately,

Sule of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at
the points of serving these items to (he guesis. Sales are stated exclusive of Sales Tax /
VAT/GST.

frteresr income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing financial assets
classified as available for sale, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rare
(EIR}. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
aver the expected life of the linancial instrument or g shorter period, where appropriate; to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income s inciuded in finance

income in the income statement,

Diviclends

Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right 1o receive the Payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend,

Gain/floss) on sale af investment i mutual Sunds
Linin/loss) on sale of investment in mutyal funds is recorded as other income an transfer of

title from the Company and is determined as the difference between the redemption price and
carrying value of the investments.
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(e)

()

Taxes
Current income oy

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognized in correlation to the underlving transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management perindically evaluates positions taken in the tax retuins with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred toax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it 15 probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary ditferences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists 1o
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for {ong-term construction projects if the recognition criteria

arc met, r"‘f"f"—‘“ %
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(g)

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 on
Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:

Fixed Asscts Uselul life considered
_ (SLM) i
Plant & Machinery 15 Year
| Building 60 Years il
Electrical installations and fittings 10 Years i
_Office Equipment’s 3 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Yeuars
Wehicles ¥ Years
| Computers 3 Years |
Crockery, cutlery and soft furnishings 3 Years |

The Company, based on management estimates, depreciates certain items of building,
plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are lower than the useful life
prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act. 2013. The management believes that
these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period
over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized s
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on Derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated  amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally  generated
intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, arc noi capitalized and the velated
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on
Straight line basis over its useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized. but are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues fto be supportable.
If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.
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(h)

(i)

()

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel and are
recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they oecur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Inventories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operaling supplies are valued at lower of cost and nel
realisable Value, Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale,

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing [or an asset is
required, the Company cstimates the asset’s recoverable amount, An assel’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating units (CGU) fair valueless costs of
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or Company of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds iis
tecaverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset, In determining net selling price, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples. quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators.

The Compuny bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast caleulations.
which are prepared separately for each of the Company's CGUs 10 which the individual aszets
are allocated, These budgets and forecast calculations genevally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project Muture cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections bevond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
Justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used,

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGLL

BC
:Li-:}'\ .




Inovoy Hotels &

Resorts Limited
Notes to financia| Statements for the year endeg March 31, 201y
recoverable amount, A previously recognized impairment loss js reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumpt; i !

(k)

ity

! nptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the
last impairment Joss Was recognized. The reversal js limited 50 that the Larrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amoun that would have
bt‘:f:ﬂ determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss heen recognized for the asser in
Prior years. Such reversal s recognized in the statemeny of profit or loss unless the asser js
carried at d revalued amount, inwhich case, the reversal is treated i3 & revaluation incregse,

Provisions
Ceneral

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
45 a result of a past event, it js probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required Lo settle the obligation and a reljabje eslimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation, When the Company LXpECts some or all of g provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a
Separale asset, but only when the rej mbursement s virtually certain, The expense relating to a
Provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement,

It the effect of the time valye of money is material. provisions are discounted usin 2 a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks s pecific to the liability, When
discounting is used, the increase in the pProvision due to the passage of time iz recognized gs g
finance cost.

Retirement and other em ployee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The group
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The group
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date. then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future Payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity lability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an qctuarial
valuation on projected unit eredit method made at the end ol each financial yeay,

Short 1erm compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term
compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation
15 done as per projected unit credit method,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial 2ains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
exeluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the retum
on plan assets ( excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability).
are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit 1o
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they oceur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or Inss in subsequent periods,

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earljer of:
*  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
*  The date that the Coempanyrecognizes related restructuring costs
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{m)

Net interest is caleulated by applying the discount rate 1o the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Companyrecognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as
an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and foss:
* Service costs comprising current service Costs, past-service costs; gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
*  Net interest expense or income

The company treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
stalement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right 1o defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional
legal and contractual right 1o defer the settlerent for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liahility.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assers
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attribuiable to the
acquisition of the financial asset, Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e.. the date that the Company commits
to purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent meastrement

For purposes of subsequent measurcment, financial assets are classified in following
categories;

= Debt instruments at amortized cost

* Debt instruments ar fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

* Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCI)
Equity instruments in subsidiaries carried at cost

L ]

Db fnstruments ar amortized cost
A debt instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the followin g conditions are met:

a)  The asset is held within a business mode] whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise an specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

Ihis category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement. such financial
assets are subsequently measured at mmortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount ar premium on
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acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment arc
recognized in the profit or lass, This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.
loans to subsidiaries etc. For more information on receivables, refer to Mote 9,

Debt instriment ot FYTOCT

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a} The objective of the business model is achieved bath by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets. and

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as ol
cach reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses & roversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument
is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Dbt instruntent ar FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments, Any debt instrument, which does nol meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCL is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which othetwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’ ). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FV'TPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL catepory are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecogniiion

A tfinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's
consolidated balance sheet) when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company  has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, but has
transferred control of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and 1o what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset. the Company
continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing
mvolvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability, The
transferred assel and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applics expected eredit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and eredit
risl exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢} Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18

e} Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f) Financial guaraniee contracts which are not measured as at FVTRL

The Company follows *simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

® Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
» All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If,
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within |2 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all

cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows. an entity is
required to consider:

= All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However,
in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated
reliably. then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument

o Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral o the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the

head ‘other expenses’ in the P&/L,ﬂ;?b&_lm\ce sheet presentation Tor various financial
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instruments is described below:

= Financial assets measured as at amortized cost. contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company doss not
reduce impairment allowance from the ErOss carrving amount,

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCIK: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCL

Financial liabilities
Initicl recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and. in the case of lnans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction cisls,

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurenicnt

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fuir value through
profit or loss, Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpaose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses artributable 1o changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred o
P&L. However. the Company may transfer the cumulative gain of loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss,
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and
lss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interesi-bearing
loans and korrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities arc derecognized as well

as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
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and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 13

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the group Company are those contracts that require a
Payment to be made to reimburse the guarantee holder for a loss it incurs because the
Company fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a dabt
instrument. Financial puarantees issued by the group Company on behalf the Company are
designated as “Insurance Contracts’.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantialiy
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrving
amounts s recognized in the statement of profit or loss,

Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
few shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds,

Reclassification of financial asseis

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
tecognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are
equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or
ceases Lo perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period lollowing the change in
business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognized pains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

| O ginal | Revised Accounting treatment
classification | classification _ |
Amaortized FVTPL Fair value is measured a1 reclassification date, Difference
cost between previous amortized cost and fair value is
) . recognized in P&L.
FVTPL Amortized | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross
Cost carying amount. EIR is caleulated based on (he new
| | Bross carrying amount, .
| Amortized FNTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. DifTerence
cost between previous amortized cost and fair value is
recognized in  OCL. No change dn_EIR due 1w
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reclassification. =
FVTOCI Amortized | Fair value at reclassification dale becomes ils new
cost amortized cost carrying amount. However, cumulative
gain or loss in OCI is adjusted againgt fair value
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always |
s been measured at amortized cost.

FVTPL FVTOCT Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new |
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required. i
FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative

gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified |
to P&L at the reclassification date,

Cffsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount ie reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the

recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the lizhilities simultaneously,

(n} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance shest comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in valuc,

(o) Segment reporting policics
Identification of segments

The management of the Company reviews the specific performance of its respective hotel
properties. However, since all hotels have similarity in terms of products and services,
customer classes, method of providing services and the regulatory environment. the
individual hotels qualify for aggregation. Thus. the management has considered aggregating
all the hotels as one reportable operatin £ segment. Accordingly, the figures appearing in these
financial statements relate to the Com pany’s single operating segment.

) Recent accounting pronouncements issued but not yet effective upio dare of issuance of
[finuncial statewieits

a)  Ind AS 116, Leases

Ind AS 116 — ‘Leases” was notified on 30th March 2019, which is applicable for the
accounting period beginning from Ist April 2019, For lessees, the standard eliminates the
classification of leases as either Operating or finance, as required by Ind AS 17. and instead
introduces a single lease accounting model. Applving that model a lessee is required o
recognize, (a) assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months. unless
the underlying asset is of low value and (b) depreciation of leased assets separately from
interest on lease liabilities in the income statement. Lessor Accounting under Ind AS 116 wil]
nat be having any transitional impact on initial recognition. Under Ind AS 17. the comparny
was charging lease rental in statement of Profit and loss. which would be charged as
depreciation and finance cost under lnd AS 116, having a favourable impact on EBITDA,

A lessor shall recognise lease payments from leases as income on either straight-line or
another systematic basis. The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

* Full retrospective - Retrospectively to each prior period presented applving Ind AS &
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accou ting Estimates and Errors.
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* Modified retrospective - Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the
Standard recognized at the date of initial application,

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability at the present

value of the remaining lease payments. discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the
right of use asset either ar:

* lts carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, bu
discounted at lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

* An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrucd
lease payments related to that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date
of initial application,

The company is in the process of evaluating the impact of transitioning from old standard i.e
Ind AS 17 to new standard i.e Ind AS 116 and the transition approach.

b)  Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

This Appendix clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in Ind
AS 12 when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. In such a circumstance, an entity
shall recognise and measure its current or deferred tax asset or liability applying the
requirements in Ind AS 12 based on taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losscs,
unused tax credits and tax rates determined applying this Appendix. The Company is in the
process of evaluating the impact of this Appendix.

¢)  Amendment to Ind AS 12- Income Taxes

On March 30, 2019, the amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12. ‘Income Taxas’, in
connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of
dividends in profit or loss, ather comprehensive income or equity according 1o where the
entity originally recognised those past transactions or events.

The amendment is effective from annual period beginning from April 1, 2019, The Company
does not have any impact on account of this amendment.

d} Amendment to Ind AS 19- Employce Benefits

On March 30, 2019, the amendments to Ind AS 19, in connection with accounting for plan
amendments, curtailments and settlements. The amendments require an entity, 1o use updated
assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period
after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement: and to recognise in profit or loss as part of
past service cost, or a gain or loes on settlement, any reduction in a surplus. ¢ven If that
surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Elfective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April
I, 2019. The Company does not have any impact on account of this amendment
(g) Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has clected to present earnin gs before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss.
The company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit! (loss) from continuing operations. In
its measurement, the company does not include depreciation and amortization expense,
interest income, finance costs and tax expense.
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Notes to financial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2019

& Financial assets (R i faliding
March 31, 20019 March 31, 2018

(a) Investments

Investments at Fair value through Profit & Loss
Unguoted mutual Tunds

8.228.985 (Previous year 4.756.947) Units of Reliance Money Manager Fund 217.28 116.01
3,219,743 (Previous year Nil) Units of Reliance Liguid Fund 146,88 -
3Jad 16 [ 1601
Agorepate book value of guoted investments 3od. 16 I 1601
Aggregate amount of impairement in value of investments - 2
Jad. 16 | 1601
Current 364,16 [ 16.0]
Non-Current H =
Jo4.16 11601

{ Ry in fakls)
March 31, 20019  March 31, 2018

(b} Orther financial assets

Security Deposit 2150 18,93
Interest accrued on deposits with banks and others 67.53 5912
Other bank balances® 107,45 10745

196.47 185.51

* Balances with scheduled banks on margin money Rs. 107.435 lakhs (March 31,2018:- Re. 10745 lakhs) is under
lien as bank guarantees issued piven o various Government deparimente.

Break up of non-current financial assets carried at amortised cost (R in lakha)
March 31, 2009 March 31, 20018

Security Deposit 21.50 18.95
Interest accrued on deposits with banks and others 67.53 50,12
Cither bank balances 107.45 107.45

Total non-current financial assets carried at amortised cost 196.48 [85.52
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6 Deferred tax assels (nef) Rz i fkis)
March 31, 20019 March 31, 2008

Property, plant and cquipment 41950 407205
Deferred tax linhility S19.50 407 26
fmpact of expenditure charged o the statcment of profit and loss in the

current! earlier period bot allowakle for ey purposes on paviment basis a.02 822
Provision (o doubiful debis and advances 139 227
E ffect of unahaorhed deprecintion and husiness lnss 401,69 oz e
Prowision for gratuity 257 234
Frovision [or leave compengation 145 1.28
Borrowing cost 2.49 (k.11
Deferved tax asscl 419,50 407.26

Reconciliation of fax expensce and the accounting profit moltiplicd by India’s domestic tax rate for period/vear
Mharch 30, 2009 and Mareh 31, 2018:

March 31, 20019 March 31, 2018

Profit/(less) befare tax 46,18 {12081}
Tax e 26.00%% 26,0005
T al statutory income tax rate 12,001 (3141
Effect of incomes axable at nil/lowerMAT rate (1200} 34
Ineome ax clarge! (credit) in respect of carlier yoar 2 .20
Mot = .21
As per profit and Ioss aceaunt - 0.20

T iher non-current assels Fls i laklash
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2018

Capital Advances . 1%

- [L1R

Advimoe imeome @y (el of provision for taxation) 47,23 3982
47.23 30.82

Total 47.23 ALLIH

B Inventories (¥ £ dakhg)

(valued at lower of cost and nel realisable value) Muarch 31, 2019 Maich 31, 2018
Food and beverages (excluding liquor, wines and smokes) 5.92 Sal6
Liguer, wing and smokes B.23 612
Stores andd spares 18.58 1 7.60

Total 3274 2014
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% Finuncial azsels
{1 Trade receivables (K5 in lakles)
Mlanch 31, 2009 March 31, 2118

Tradle receivahles L 134,03

I3 13603

Break-up for security detnils:
Tradle recsivahles

Crnseoured, comsidered Eu:-nd Iria 1 35S
Daaualit fd &80 il
-IE_H 1dd e

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doahiful debis)

Unsecured, considered pood

Pxourlst fud &A1 & E1
&A1 BRI
Tatul Trade receivables 30,340 | 56,03

o irade or ofher receivable are due from directors or otber officers of the compiy either severally or jointly willy iy othe
persan Mar giry tade or other rocelvable age due fiom finns or ivate companies reapectively it which any direcior is o pamer, &
director or 8 member.

March 31, 2009 Morch 31, 2008

(i) Cash amd cush equeivalents

Fealance with hanks
Onp cnrenil Secoumis 114,20 B2 50
Cash oo band 1,44 1.63

115,65 Lk, 22

Al Muarch 31, 2009, the Compamy had available Rs, 101 {ddarch 31, 2018: Bs, Nil) of unidszwn comnitied bormwing Facilities
Cash ot hanks does not eam amy miberes

Farr Al parpose of the statement of cash flows, cachand cosh equivaleants comprize the falleaing
March 31, 2007 Marcla 31, 2018

Particulnrs

Mealamee: with bamks

81 CUTTEN| ACCMINES 114240 1250
Uaah o hand P46 [l
Tuotal cash ard cash equivalens 115.65 1422

March 30, 2009 Barch 31, 2018

(i) Odtlver financial asscts
Securaty deprslt 545 7.20
5.4% 1.2

Bireak up of curvent finoncinl assets carried ot amortised cost

Mareh 51, 200%  Delarch 31, 2068

Cash s cogh exiivabeiis 11563 4,22
Sacurtly depogin 545 .00
Todal current Mnanckal ssses carebod ot nmortsed cost 1211 11142

10 Ehtleer carvent asscis

March 31, 200% Mlarch 31,2018

Advanee for supply ol goods ol reindeing of sgrvices K (K]
[imhilled revense - J4%
Diatlizie willy scaiwtany? movemnent nuibonises 561 498
Prepasd o pesos 11.36 1462

Todal 4080 i35
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11 Equity Share capital
Aiithorisel Slore Capital F_l'lllil:l‘ shares Preference shares
M, of shares Rz in kakhs Mo of shares Rsin lakhs
At April 1, 2007 22000000 2,300, ) 300,000 200,00
IneraserTdecrease ) during the vear L6, 280, (M) 162800 - .
Al March 31, 218 AR, IR0 (W 182800 00,400 30060
Increp=eddecrease ) during the period : - . =
At March 1, 2019 30,250, 14D 342800 EXIRII 300,00
al  Terms/rights altached 1o cguily shares
The company kas only one elass of equity shores having par value of Rs. Hiper shire Eachhalder of coquity shires is entitled to one vote per share,
In the event.of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will bz pntithed w recotve remaining assets of the company, after distribution
of il preferential amewnts. The destribution will be in proportion to the mumber of equity shares held by the shireholders,
by Tssueeel equeity capital
Equity shares of INR 10 cach jssued, sulscribed and folly palid Mo, ol shares Rs in lnkhs
Al April 1, 2007 21. 480,000 L LAR.00
[ncreass durmg the year 16, B, 100 1GRO,00
Ad March 31, 2018 EL BRI AT
Increase durmg the pened - )
At March 31, 20019 A8, 250,040 A528.00
Shares held by holding com pany March 31, 2019 Murch 31, 218
Eguity shares of Re. 10 cach fully poid up M. of shares Fs in lakhs M, af slhares 125 in kakhis
Fleur Hotels Private Limited 38,230,000 182800 38 280,000 322800
cl Details of sharehiolders holding more than 5% shares io the company
March 31, 2009 Muarch 31, 2018
Mo of shares e held as al Mo of shires Y held as a
March 31, 2008 March 31, 207
Equity shares of INR 10 cach fully paid
FMevr Hotels Private Limited 38 280000 100 0% 21 480000 S0 11%
d1  Reconcilintion of shares ontstanding at the beginning and at the end of the vear {expressed in abzolule nemibers)
Partieslars Marel 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
Equity Shares
Al begimning of the period 30, 250,004 21 A80.000
Add laswed during the pesied - 16,800,000
At end of the period 38, 290,000 38, 280000




12 (dher equity

Securities Premiom Heserve B for Fakhs

At April 1, 207 41520
Inereasel decrense) dunng the year 324
At March 31, 2008 4544
Inerepsed decrense) during (e period -
AL Mareh 31,2009 H544
Retained Earnings Hs I lakles
At April 1, 20017 {LIT.17)
{loss) fog the visir (12018
At March 31, 2008 {2.118.35)
Prafit for the year 4733

At March 31, 2009

{207 EANZ)

General Heserve s im labis
At April 1, 2017 0LGT
Inrengal decrepge) during the year =
Al March 31, 2008 067
Incrensed detrense ) ducing the perisd -
At March 31, 2019 067
Capital Reserve [ Equity Comgronent of Lown Teom Tolding

Compny ) Mg in lakhs
At April 1, 2007 167580
Inereaseidicrease ) during the vear (163011}
At Mareh 31, 2018 43,74
[mereasafdecraase) during the perind £
Al Mareh 3, 2009 A5.79

Criher reserves

(R o Jenkidas )

Miarel 31, 2009 March 31,2018

Securities Premium Keserve 44544 44544
Retained Eamings (2,07 1.02) {2.118.35)
Cieneral Reserve 0.67 0aT
Capital Reserve 45.79 4579
[1,579.12] [1f2h 45

Capital reserve represents equity component of Lean from halding company. Dunng the previous vear the Company had re-poid this Inon ond
acsorcingly reversed the Capital Reserve (equity component of Loan)
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13 Bormewings ity o felir
rite Matarity  March 31, 2009 pagch 31, 2088
e R i lnkihs Rain lakle

Mim-current rormowings

Term Lpans
Indlizn rupee lnans from Buenls (Seeored )
Vs Bank Lomiled {Refer node | belon) O 5% 0303 | A 18538 X574
Velsicle loans {Refor note 2 balow) 0.75% an-2021 123 isl
Tatal nan-curren! hareowings LISTAI 1A TS

' urremt hnrrnmiup:

Term Loans
Current maturity of long term loans

Yoes Bank Ermated {Refer node | he|n-w:| o 575, HERE203 1HE I 75560
Veldcle lonns { Befer note 2 below) D.75% 202p-202] 151 L7
Tatul current borrawings 141.81 7567
Lesa: Amount chubbed under “other current liatbiries™ {141.81) [T5.67)

Mef eurrent Borrawings - -

1) Terms atteched to Loan from Yes Bank Limited ¢

1) Baipee term boan from Yes bank (Samctioned Amcand Bs 3300 laklsy is secured by -

aFirst charpe en all present and Future mmovable azscts of the projest comned by the bomrower ingluding the land and botel burlding loeated i whitefield
bnglore

h !:Lir charpe on all mimvalle Rxead sssels (hodl weserl and fatme 3 and ewmrenl aseis (hotly Trexenl amil Tty and corcenl asseis {hath presend arul Fribre
meduding sessow opened with Y'es Bank Limited ) of the bomower

e bscrow ol all recaivables of the project inchxding secunty deposits.

o Uncimdstisnnl el srrevocable Corparnte guaraniee of Feor Holels Povate Limied b remain vabsd durieg fhe eotme tenar of Yes Bank Lumged fGcilies

2 Wehicks loan iz seenred by hypothecation of usderlying mator velsele aequened outof seel loans. The lean is repaid on agresd equal montlily installmesis.

14 Providons

March 31, Y% March 31, 2018

s im Dukhs R an lakhs
Provislen for gratwity AT 2R
Current 155 =]
Mom-currend 733 g
Mareh 31, 200%  blarch 31, 2008

R im lakdis R i lakls
Provision for leave benefits LB 40
Chrrent LE ] 4

Moai-elrrent = =
Tatal current K12 7.3

Tatn] nan-corrent T3 b
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15 Financial liabilitics

{i) Trade Payables
-Other than Micro and small enterprises

(it} Other financial liabilitics
Current malurities of long-term bomrowings
Outstanding dues of other creditors
Interest accrued but not due

Break up of eurrent financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Current maturities of Tong-term borrowings
Ouitstanding dues of other creditors

16 Other current liabilities

Advance received from customers
Staturory liabilities

{fs i dakhis)

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
175.58 [91.68

175.58 19].68

(Rs in lakhs)

March 31, 20149

March 31, 2018

141.81 75.67
6313 33.7%
0.91 -
205.84 |09.45
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
141.81 T5.67
63.13 33,78
204.94 109,435

{Rs in lakhs)

March 31, 2019

Muarch 31, 2018

4.08 4.57
3110 27.78
35.18 3233
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{dex irg Foaliz)

17 Revemue [rom speralivns March 31, 20019 HIE
Hevemue rom gpertions
Sale of products and services
Room rentals 156160 1,323.10
Fouxd pnd boverage texcluding hauor and wing) 196,98 21316
Liquor angd wine A5 36.70
lelephione wiwd telex 1.65 (.09
hher Services 13133 15380
Dther Operating Revenue
Commission ingams - 016
1,932,580 1,727.01
{5 ind Ferkhs)
18 Oiler income March 31, 2019 2018
Excess provisiay' credit balances written hack - I
Intereaton income tax refiand .59 -
Sale of scrap 0.52 1,37
Tvtwl EAT |.39

(R tin ferkihix)
1% Cost of materinls conswmed Murch 31, 2009 2018

{ap Consompl i of food & beverages excluding liquor & wine

Irvemitory ut tie beginming ol (e yeur 80 6 80
Add: Purchases 133,15 13606

1303 142 87
Lags: Iventory at the end of the year 592 589
Comsumption of fusl and bevernges (excluding liquor, wines and smokes) 133.11 1359

(b Consumption of liguor & wine

Imvemory at the beginning of the year a1 523
Auld: Purclages 14.31 1513
20,060 1896
Less: Inventory at the end of the vear 523 5.69
Consumptaon of lguor, wines and smokes 11.74 1327
144858 150.25
(s i lerklis)

ik Emphiyee bemelil expense Mlareh 31, 2009 2008
Sataries, wapes and bonus 349.75 155,23
Contributien o provident and other Mund 1. 1 1 12
Ciratuity epense RN 182
Leave encashment expense 078 11,34
Stwff welfare und traming expenscs 55,16 4596

421.480 41 E07
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(s fag Ferfdas)
21 Ciher cxpenses Mareh 31, 2019 AIE
Constmption of stores, citlasy, croekery, pravisiens and ethers 35.76 4007
e expense 1361 1y
Powver o Tueld 60,7 Rk
Linen and unilonm washing and undry expenses 1204 2248
Cuest rnnsportation cxpenses 63,51 e
Suhseription charges 323 337
Repabrand mamntenanes expenses
- Bunldings 2.0l 14,24
- Plane and mackinery JR4s 30.1%
- CHiers 2053 .52
Rt nnad Gy 17,040 18,35
Insurance expenses ER10) 4,10
Commumnication costs 2710 LR
Printing and stationery expenses B3 B.37
Travaling and cohveysncs 302 418
Vehele runming and maingeance expenses 5112 ER L
Equipiment hire charpes .03 2.56
Advertizement and business promolion expenses S84 500,73
Management foes LR 83,06
Commission -other thn sole selling ogent 62.27 832
Security and cleaning expenses 545 32.06
Membership and suhscriptions k9] (G
Legal and prefessionn] expenses 14.03 11.74
Exchange difference (net) - (05
Payment o auditors 1.0@ .55
Water pnd sewarage charges H.42 4.0
Miscelbaneons expensaes 406 1800
739.97 Bl 63
Bayment to auditnr
As awditpr 1.00 25
1.00 .53
i dir Al
12 Finwnve cost March 31, 2019 2 H
Interest
on term loans from kanks J35.51 33510
on others - 576
Baonk charges (mcledimg commission om eredit card collection) 24.35 1675
350,86 LR
e AND A
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{lis i fonkds)
13 Depreciation amd amuriization expense March 31, 2019 IR
Depreciation of angible assets 24801 27415
Amortization of intangible asseds 2.l 235
Totul 15042 276 33
(R in Takhs)
24 Finance income Mharch 31, 2019 2R
Interest Incéame an
-Bank Deposits 934 i2.48
Hhers Depasitz i 341
Profit en sale of current investment 144 .
Fair valuation profie on lnancial instruments at fair value threaugh prefis o 16.71 1.01
17.50 1690

25 Ewrnings per share {Basic and Diluted)

Basic BPS amounts are cofeudnted by dividing the prafit for the yeor shiributable 19 equity holders of the
CHMTpny 11.\- 1l wl‘_-iﬂi'l‘led AvereE nniiribear ﬂfFJ.;llin shares |!||.'|L’|.1:.°|r||.|ir|g during (e Yeur,

Difuted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the peolit atiributable to equity holders of the company by the
wetghted avarage tuimber of Raguity shares outstanding during the vear plus the weighted sverage number of
FEguity shares that waald be sssued an conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares,

The falloweng data retfects the inputs to calculation of bose e diloted EPS

Mearch 31, 2019 R
Profin # (lossy after tax {Rs in lakhs) 47.33 LI21.18)
PProfit # {Loss) for caleedation of hasic and diluced EP5S d7.33 {121.18)
Wenglited averape nunsber of Equity shares for basic EPS JEIRO000 26450950
Weighted pversge number of equity shores i cabenlating diluted EPS IB2RO000  2h 450959

Basic aiwd dilured EPS iz [LLE )
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26. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assum plions

The preparation of the Company’s financial -statements requires management to
make judpments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses. assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has
made the following judgments, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee

The Company has taken certain land and land and building on long term lease basis,
The Company has determined. based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of
the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the
cconomic life of the property and the fair value of the asset, that it does not have all
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for
the contracts #s operating |eases.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to
claims against the Company, including legal, land access and other claims. By their
nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future
events occur or fail to oceur. The assessment of the existence, and potential
quantum. of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant Judgment
and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future evenis.

Estimates and assumptions

Ihe key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates an
parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared,
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however. EL
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyvond the control
of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value measurement of financial instrumenis

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets. their
fair value is measured using other valuation techniques, The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values, Judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk. credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reporied fair value of financial
insiruments, .
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Notes to financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unil exceeds s
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales
transactions. conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets of observable market prices [less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model,
The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five vears and do not include restructuring
activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will
enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive 1o
the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the
erowth rate used for extrapolation purposes,

Taxcs

The management bused on its assessment of the industry forecasts and current period profits is
hopeful of generating future taxahle profits to utilize deductible temporary differences, carry
forward of unabsorbed depreciation. However, considering that nature of the Company's
operations and history of past tax losses, deferred tax assets (including MAT credit) are recognized
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be gencrated in future against which the
deductible temporary differences. carry forward of unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses can he
utilised. Accordingly, it is considered prudent to recognize the deferred tax asseis only to the
extent of deferred tax liabilities and the Company has not recognised deferred tax assets of Rs
312.60 lakhs, Rs 194.82 lakhs as of March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 respectively.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumplions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortal ity rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature. a defined benefit obligation |s highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions, Al assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

The mortality rate is bagsed on publicly available mortality tables [or the specific countries. Those
mortality tables tend 1o change only at interval in response to demographic changes, Future salary
increases and gratuity increases ape based on expected future inflation rates for the respective
countries,

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 27,
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27. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

Rs. In lakhs
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019
Gratuity plan 9.87 9.28
Total 9.87 928 |

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The grawity plan is governed by the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of
service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s
length of service and salary al retirement age. The Company makes provision of such gratuity
asset/ liability in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the Projected
unit credit method,




BTG - 9170 £5°0 (L1 = : - €81 67D vel 6TL
utyd go-ompaa aim,g
BC'6 = 9o £E°0 (Lrn) e # + £8°1 B0 rel 6L nonedige
To=uadg puacy
i | > HWE-.—n—E-.—HHﬂ ﬂﬂn_mn_ X3 = L | "N
130 Mn“_uunEL suonydwmssy 1ERI3U 320
2 EERCIT TR ; > ¥ deasn
#1027 ‘15 e popupmy  swewnsnfpr  wpsdwmya  FRCCURER WRORIEM et gsop a0 ayoad H“HH. 1503 LTOT
P DO i Pulstey o1 fupiid fuisue saduEga EUTLTELEY e i N , ey 1 Iady
: . s Sty ._—“._.u.z._w..___ ﬂu.wmw urjd mer-qeg ]
_.ﬂ_._.._ﬂu.:ud_. LLL1] ﬂu—-.-uﬂ.ﬂ
Sypoy up Ty oo ansuagaadwed Mo up {sasen))sues EaEE.ﬁInwEux 5501 40 11j0ad 01 pagiey 1500 Apnywan
‘B10T 1€ yuey e su spasse uejd J0 anfea J1 pur uonediqo 1jausg pausp oy ui safusyny
LE6 - (s1°D) toz1) o = # (i) FI°T B0 | 876 Knpgw anag
= - - - - - - - = - = . S51a55E
ug|d jo anjes nwg
LE'6 > lerp oz o L e FO'T 890 9g] RT6 nanEEian
3N panitpayy
ok suondinnssy HHMHHHH : | N
dadoqdura 120 I dasowa u) s
! 610% _m“ 5 papnjam  sjuswgsnfpe uy saduEyy nwﬁu”.“_*“:,_nh.m .n___”_u:_“_...:__,.u-q_ pmd ss0) a0 g ”M_._“_._Hﬂ 1500 8I0T
TEQMERN UM LDy e g LR S b Sursune sadmeya  Smpnjaxa) R U1 papnpauy 1Ay ) WNAIeS Timdy
g ”w.w_w—_u [RLIEMY s1assE wegd wn-qns
i LR |
Sy sy 203wy aasuanadiung 1ayg0 uy (sassop)sued I IMSEILINY © ssopao yoad o) pasiega 1500 unyEan

6 10T "1€ yoaey e se siasse uepd jo anjea J1e) pue uoeSiqo 11jauag pautap a1 i safumyy

GINZ “I€ Y24T W PIPUI AEAA AY] J0) SJUIWAIE)S [BIIUEUL) 0OF SAJON
PRIIWIT §11053Y @ $]2)0H EoAOuU]




Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows;

March 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2018

Unquoted investments:

Asset invested in insurance scheme with the LIC kL
Total

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown

below:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Discount rate: Y Yo
Pension plan 6.90% 7.30%
Future salary increases:
Pension plan 5.00%, 5.00%
Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65: Years Years
Pension plan
Male 60 60
Female 60 60

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assum ption as at March 31, 2019 is as shawn below:

India gratuity plan:

March 31, March 31. March 31. March 31,
2019 2019 2019 2019
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensilivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase

1% decrease

Impact on defined benefit

obligation 0.28 0.30 .30 0.29




Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019
) March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2018 2018 2018 2018
Assumplions Discount rate N _I'HE satj';c;a-us“ -
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease

Impact on defined benefit o = R T

obligation 0.27 0.28 0,29 0,27

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based
defined benefit obligation as a result ol rea
the reporting period.

on a method that extrapolates the impacl on
sonable changes in key assumptions oceurring at the end of

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years;

Duration (Years)

For the yvear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
! 2.63 2.43
2 2.11 2.00
3 1.68 1.64
4 1.36 1,33
3 LB Loy
Above 5 348 3.39
Total expected payments 12.37 11.86

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the

reporting period is 5 vears
(March 31, 2018: 5 years).

28, Commitments and contingencies

#. Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

At March 31, 2019, the Company had NIL commitments (March 31, 2018: Rs NIL)
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b. Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowled ged as debits
Rs. In lakhs

jf March 31, 2019/ March 31, 2018 |
4. \Property Tax case 2010-11 (A eal filed by the com any) . 69.34
b. |[Counter E,:uaranrees 1ssued in respect of guarantees issued by 107.45 107.45
[company’s bankers
29. Related Party Transactions
a) Names of related parties
Ultimate Holding Company Lemon Tree Hotels Limited
Holding company Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Fellow subsidiary companies Celsia Hotels Private Limited
Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited
Manakin Resorts Private Limited
Key Management Personnel Mr. Sumant Jaidka (Whole Time Director),

Mr. Cyrus Mehernosh Madan ( Director)

Mr. Arjun Sawhny (Independent Director) (Upto June
13,2017)

Mr, Paramartha Saikia (Independent Director)

Enterprise in which ultimate holding company has ~ Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited
significant influence

b) Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during
the vear:

Chief Financial Officer : Mr. Inder Pal Batra
Company Secretary . Ms. Pooja Bakshi

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related
parties for the relevant financial year
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Notes to financial statements

(Amouni in lakhs.)

Enterprise

—

in which Key
ultimate Mauanageme
Transactions with Year I.Th:]t::;;nnln Holding Fellow holding nt
Related Party Ended R ang' company | subsidiary company personnel
pany has or their
significant relatives
influence
Reimbursement of
expenses incurred on
company behalf
Lf:m;_crn Tree Hotels 31-Mar-10 . i} ] . _
Limited
31-Mar-18 - - - - -
Subscription in share bl
capital of the company
Fleur Hotels Privare 2
Limited 31-Mar-19 - - - - -
3-Mar-18 - 1,710.24 - - -
Loans talken
Fl_cu_r Hatels Private 31-Mar_19 - . & ¥ =
Limited )
31-Mar-18 - 11560 = L g
Loans repaid
F !eu_r Hotels Private 31-Mar-19 ) = . ! :
Limited
31-Mar-1% - 1,808.24 = 3 d
Management Fees & |
Sales Promotion (Net
of taxes)
Lemon Tree Hotels :
Limited 31-Mar-19 163.25 < - ~
31-Mar-18 141.99 = : = =
'ﬁ'ﬂining Fee Paid
(Net of Taxes)
Mind Leaders Learning | _
India Private Limited |  -Mar-19 : : - i -
31-Mar-18 - - - 1.56 -

Remuneration to
Dircelor
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Enterprise
in which Key
Ultimate ultimate Manageme
Transactions with Year Holding Fellow holding nt
holding W
Relatcd Party Ended company | subsidiary | company persanne
company A
has or their
significant relatives
influence
Sumant Jaidka 31-Mar-19 - = - - 0l1.75
31-Mar-18 - - - - 55.61
Balance outstanding at
the year-end — Other
Current Liabilities
Lemon Tree Hotels 31 -Mar-19 28.73 = ) N .
Limited
31-Mar-18 13.37 - . =
Sumant Jaidka 31-Mar-19 - - - - 6.5
31-Mar-18 - - - - 6,33
Mind Leaders Learning
India Private Limited s r s
Jl-Mar-18 5 g

0.23
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Terms and conditions of transactions with related partics

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s
length transactions. Outstanding balances at the vear-end are unsecured and interest free and setllement
oceurs in cash. For the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has not recorded any impairment of
receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31. 2018 Rs. Nil). This assessment is
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market
in which the related party operates.

Commitments with related parties

The company has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year.

30. Fair value measurement
This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the company and provides
additional information on the balance sheet. Details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria

for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised. in
respect of cach ¢lass of financial asset. linancial liability and equity instrument,

4. Financial instruments by category

iz, fin Lakhs
31-March-19 J1-March-18

L FYTPL Amorlised Cost FVTEL Amaortised Cost |
Financial Assets
Trade Receivibles - 349.37 2 136.03
Security Deposits - 26.95 - 26.15
Other bank balances - 107.45 - 107 45

| Cash and Cash 2 115.65 i 104.22
Equivalents
Interest acorued on - 67.53 i 3912
deposit with banks
Total Financial Assels 2 356.95 - 432.97

£, fn Lokhy

31-March-19 31-March-18 ]

FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - 3,329.48 - 342992
Trade Payvables - 175.58 - 191.68
Other Current Financial 64.03 - 33,748
Liabilities i
Total Financial 3,569.03 . 363338
Liahilitics )

The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables,
bank overdrafts, Interest acerued on bank deposits with banks, other current financial assets and other




Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited
Notes to linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

current financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.

31. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilitics comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payahles,
I'he main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and lo support its
operations. The Company's financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash & cash
equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management
oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial
risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for
the Company. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the Company's senior management that
the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that
linancial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk
objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each risk, which are
summarised as below:;

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will Nuctuate
because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency
risk and other price risk. Finaneial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.
deposits and payables/receivables in foreign currencies.

Interest rale risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates,
The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company expects the variable rate
to decline, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its loans at variable interest rates,

Ky, In lakhs

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Variable rate borrowings 3,325.38 3,424.24
Fixed rate borrowings 4.10 5.68

[nterest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on
partion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables
constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowing:
follows:
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=00 Increase/decrease in basis points Effect on profit before tax -_1
| Rs. In lakhs _-
31-March-19 _ |
INR 50 17.27 E
. INR S0 (17.27) !
31-March-18 g
MR S 17.47
| INR -50 (17.47) |

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that tounterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or custamer
contract, leading to a financial loss, The Company is exposed to credit risk from ils operating activities
{primarily trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from it financing activities, mcluding deposits
with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments,

Trade receivables and Security Deposits

Customer credit risk is managed by business through the Company's established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer eredit risk Management. Credit quality of each customer js assessed and credit
limuits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables and security deposits
are regularly monitored,

An impairment analysis is performed for all major customers at each reporting date on an individual basis, In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous group and assessed for
impairment collectively. The caleulation is based on historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk m
the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in note 30, The Company
evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in
several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets,

Foreign curreney risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate becayse
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has no exposure in foreign currency.

(#) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer s
assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of
number of dayvs and amount.

An impairment analvsis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minar receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively, The maximum EXposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of
cach class of financial assets disclosed in Note 30. The Company does not hold collateral as see urity,

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's Lreasury
department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties and within eredit limits assigned to each counterparty.
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The Company’s maximum Exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31,
2019 and March 31, 2018 is (he carrying amount,

Jlll:\ _'._I' T .'I. .'-::' ‘.l.
~ o Aoven March31,2009 |  March3r 201 |
o Not due . = '
0-60 days past due 38.09 54.30 -
61-120 days past due 1.27 8.90
121-180 days past due £ _ 15.72
| 80-365 days past due - 5565
365-730 days past due - 23
more than 730 days | = 1.23 - J

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

Rs. fi lakhs
Agcing March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018 |
Gross earrying amount 48.18 144,84
Expected credit losses 5.81 5.8]
Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of 39.36 136.03
impairment)
Reconciliation of impairment of trade
receivables
Loss allowanee on 1 April 2017 881
Changes in loss allowance - .
Loss allowance on 31 March 2018 8.41
Changes in loss allowance — -
Loss allowance on 31 March 2019 . 8.81

Liguidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows, The Company's
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with
respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to 1 sufficient variety
of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders,
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments,

s, fn Lakhy
Less than 3 Jio 12

On demand l1toSyears > 5 years Tuotal
montlis months =
Year ended T e SRR e o e
Warch 31, 2019
Botrowings(Other than F 008 140,71 860,81 2,327.82 332042
preference share)
Trade and other payables 175.58 7 = 5 4 175.54
Other financial liabilities 64,04 . 45 - . = ] R
T 86081 232782 3509.08
Year ended
March 31, 2018
Borrowings(other than - 0.38 106.81 721.01 2,601.74 JAz29.82
preference share)
Trade and other payables 191.68 = = : = 191,68
Other financial liabilities 3378 - AN _- 33.78
225.46 0.36 106.81 721,01 2,601,74 3,655.38

This space has been intentional ly left blank- -




Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limiteq
Notes to finanejal statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

32. Capital mang gement

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management. capital ineludes jssued equity capital. share
premium and all other cquity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The
primary objective of the Company's capital management is 1o maximise the shareholder valug,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To aintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the dividend Payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares, The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is nei
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within et debt, interest bearing
loans and borrowings, trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents,

v, Bl

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Borrowings (other than preference share) 3.187.6] 3429492
Trade payables (Note 13) [75.58 191 68
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9) 115.65 [44.22
Met debt 3,247.53 3,517.38
Total capital 2,248.87 2.201.55
Capital and net debt 5,496,40 5,643.2¢
59% 62%

In order to achieve this overal] objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims

to ensure that it meets financial covenanis attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowin 25 that define
capital structure requirements,

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank io immediately call loans and

borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current period,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
Mareh 31, 2019 and 31 March 2018.
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33,

34.

Segment Reporting

The Company is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company. which has
been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company
performance, allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the
Company as a single unit. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the
requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”,

Information about geographical areas

The Company has only domestic operations and hence no information required for the Company as
per the requirements of Ind AS 108 _ “Operating Segments”,

Information about major customers
No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue
The management of parent company confirm to extend its continued financial support to enable

the Coinpany to meet its working capital and other financing requirements as and when required
Thus, these financial statements has been prepared on going concern basis,
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35. Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006.

March 31, | March3l.
2019 2018

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to Mil Nil
any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Nil Wil
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act. 2006 along
with the amounts of the pavment made to the supplier bevond the
appointed day during each accounting year

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in Nil Nil
| making payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

[ the amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each Wil Mil
accounting year; and

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the Nil il
succeeding vears, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterpriselor the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and
Medium Enterprize Development Act, 2006

36, The previous year figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary to
conform o this year's classification.
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